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Strategic report
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their Strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Principal activities

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited (“the Company”) is part of the Arcadis N.V. group (“the Group”).
Arcadis is a full-service design, engineering and consultancy organisation. Our work spans the entire
asset life cycle. We consult on full length projects, or even assist clients with their investment
programmes, rather than individual projects. We know our industry. sectors well and share that
knowledge globally to provide best in class sustainable solutions to our clients.

Our expertise is in Mobility, Places and Resilience. We offer our clients solutions comprising business
advisory services, consultmg, program, project & cost management, and design & engineering. We
approach our clients’ complex challenges with a carefully chosen combination of deep technical
insights, solid business consulting skills, and strong management capapbilities. This {eads to sustamable
outcomes for them at every stage. We translete our clients’ sustainability policy into tangible
measures in our projects and work hard at making our solutions as sustainable as possible.
Increasingly, we pair this with digital capabilities, providing our clients with better user experience
insights in the conceptual phase of projects, enhanced control during a project’s realisation, and better
insights into an asset’s performance during its lifespan. Sustamablllty has become a key business driver
for a growing number of clients. It can bring benefits like pricing power, cost reductions, a stronger
labour market position, business opportunities for new products and ;eryices as well as a reduction in
risks and better aqéess tq' capital. Sustainability is therefore a design principle when we develpp our
solutions for clients. '

Companies Act 2006 - Section 172 (1) statement

The matters set out in section 172 (1) (a) to (f) are deemed to have been followed by the directors
and the below forms their statement as required under this section.

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term

At Arcadis, our core values guide us in everything we do, while we base business decisions on our
strategy. Our primary aim is long-term value creation for all stakeholders. Through our client
solutions, we are committed to contribute to the sustainable development agenda and have a
positive impact on society, people and communities we serve. '

Arcadis’ value creation process aims to maximize the outcome of our business processes for all of
our stakeholders through the efficient use of the capital at our disposal. Our overali focus is on long-
term value creation, while our three-year strategy cycle allows us to update our market relevance
regularly to stay aligned with stakeholder interests.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 2
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Companies Act 2006 - Section 172 (1) statgmgnt (continued)
(b) the interests of the company's employees

Our “People First” approach ensures we care for each other and create a safe and respectful working
environment where bur people can grow, perfdrm, and succeed. Focds on becoming the employer
of choice including reducmg voluntary churn, increase in female % of workforce, health & safety
indicators. In the year we invested in our employee engagement, including |mplement|ng a leading
engagement platform and carrying out a culture audit. The Directors, which are members of the UK
Leadership team each have a sponsor role on one of our inclusion strands such as Gender, Race and
LGBT.

(c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others.

We perform active reviews and support including measurement of prompt supplier payment
performance on a monthly basis to ensure there is good liquidity in the supply chain. Our Global
Purchasing Principles and Global Partnering Pollcy addresses sustainability, equalnty, dlver5|ty &
inclusion, safety, health, -environment and quality.

We have gathered our client’s feedback through the Client Experience survey, as well as through
meetings with key clients in all of our Bus_ineSs Areas. From these interactions, we confirm the main
challenges our clients face are creating fong term sustainability for. their businesses and operati_ons,
digitalisation strategies and innovations to tackle challenges presented as a result of the aftershocks
of the Covid-19 pa‘n'demic along with the cost of living crisis.

(d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment

Our efforts in sustainability are guided by the relevant United Nations Sustainable Developm_e/nt‘
Goals (SDGs) through client solutions as well as our activities and contributions for our chosen
charities.

(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The Arcadis General Business Principles {AGBP) set guidance for our business decisions and actions
throughout the world at all levels and apbly equally to company actions and to individual behaViour
of ali our employees in conducting Arcadis’ business. Arcadis recognises that true integrity in our
daily business will be underpinned by the commitment to the prmcnples of the AGBP of our
employees and the third parties we do business with.

(f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

The Directors are aware of their duty unde“r 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006 to act in a way. which
they consider, in gocjd faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of its members as a whole.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 3
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Review of the business

The profit before taxation for the year amounted to £42.4m (year ended 31 December 2021: £42. 3m)
The profit after taxatlon for the financial year was £33.5m (year ended 31 December 2021: £34.0m).

The Company’s revenue continued to grow across all sectors as we responded to increased client
demand but also due to two exceptional projects in our Places Buginess. Staff costs grew in line with
Turnover however our Sub-Contractor costs grew significantly due to the exceptional projects in our
Places Business. ‘

Resilience continued to grow due to our clients increased needs regarding fast-approaching net-zero
targets and new policies and regulations around envnronmental social and governance (ESG)
consideration.

Within Mobility our Rail and Highways business grew due with the contlnued government investment
in road and rail, and the company continue'to deliver on previously secured work on major hlghways
schemes such as Lower Thames Crossing and rail schemes such as High Speed 2.

The Company'’s operating proflt for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £41m (year ended 31
December 2021: £41. 2m) No exceptional items have been recogmsed in the year (2021: None)

At 31 December 2022 the Company had total net assets of £121.72m (31 December 2021: £99.9m).
The financia! position, development and performance of the Company as presented in these fnancual
statements are consldered satisfactory.

On 27 April 2022, the Company disposed of Acer Partnerships Limited.

On 22 June 2022, SR3C Management Limited and Power Systems Project & Consultancy Services
Limited, direct subsidiaries of the Company, were dissolved.

There are no material significant events since the balance sheet date.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

o Turnover £4Q§.2m (2021: £31§.8m) |

. Operating profit before exceptional items £41m (2021: £41.2m)
J Operating margin before exceptional items 10.1% (2021:12.9%)
. Average.monthly number‘of employees* 2,972 (2021:2,432)

* Employed by other group companies but working on projects undertaken by the Company (See note
Sa) to the financial statements for more detalls)

Arcadis Consulting (l_JK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 4
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Current trading and beyond

We monitor the market'closely to identify trends and adjust our business appropriately. Thrdughout
2022 we continued to imbed our Global strategy which moved us to three Global Business Areas
(Mobility, Places and Resilience). This allows us to address the megatrends faced by our clients —
Urbanisation, Climate Change, Digitalisation and Societal Expectations —and to be weII placed to serve
client demand. We have a strong order book and opportunity.

Principal risks and ungenainties
The Company considers the following key risks:
Strategic: Capability and innovation — rapidly changing market demandé

Market Risk: Risk of a deep recession and the impact of government spend as aresult of lnflatlonary
pressures brought on by recent macro events.

Operational: Execution of projects, utilisation, and retention of key staff resources. Transformation
programme; the risk that major change programme associated with the new strategy is not
delivered effectively of cost efficiently.

Financial: A number of financial risks, as outlined.in the Directors’ Report-on pages 7 and 8.

Risk management and internal control systems are in operation and during the year risks were
regularly monitored by the Board of Arcadis UK (Holdings) Limited across all its UK subsidiaries and
businesses. These systems provide a means of |dent|fy|ng, evaluating and managing the sngmfcant
risks facing the business.

Information Security and Technology Risk: the risk that confidentiality, integrity, and availability of
data is compromised due to cyber—attacks. '

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 5
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Employment policies

The Company does not hadve any direct employees All of the Company s staff are employed by Arcadls
Human Resources Limited (”AHR”) and the Company incurs a management charge for the provision
of these staff.

AHR systematically. provides employees with information_on matters of concern to them, including
the financial and economic factors that affect the performance of the Company and the wider UK
group.

Employees are regularly consulted so that their views can be taken into account in making decisions
that are likely to affect their interests. The Company undertakes a quarterly survey (”Your Voice”) to
understand what mfluences employee experience.

AHR encourages employment appllcatlons from ‘candidates who identify as having a protected
characteristic under the Equahty Act 2010. This includes people with'a. disability, those from BAME
and LGBT communities and people of different faiths.

AHR’s Equality, Diversity and inclusion Strategy, including alignment with the Business Disability
Confident Scheme, guides the entire UK l)_usiness in its inclusive policies, procedures and
behaviours. For example the Arcadis group looks to support people during their employment and
seeks to ensure that no group of people holding protected characterlstlcs are put at a disadvantage
or discriminated against. The Reasonable Adjustment policy commits the group to making reasonable
adjustments to an employee s working envnronment should a disability or mental health need arise.

The Arcadis group has mandatory training on equality, diversity and mclusron for aII new starters as
well as bespoke trammg focusing on eliminating bias, mental health first aid and creating an mclusrve
business. Trammg is open to everyone regardless of protected characterlstlc status.

On behalf of the Board

EbocuSIgned by:
E73A3159EF4640D...
S Bimpson
Director

20 July 2023

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 6
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Directors’ report.
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Directors present their Report and the audlted fma ncial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Future developments

The directors believe the prospects for the Company to be good, due to continuing denia'nd, for its
services.

Dividends

On 28 February 2023, the Company propqsgd to pay a dividend of £66,007,248.
Exceptional items
No exceptional items have been recognised in the year (year ended 31 December 2021: £Nil), ‘

Financial risks

The Company’s operations expose it to a variety.of financial risks as outlined below. Risk management
and internal control systems are in operatlon and during the year risks were regularly monltored by
the board. These systems provide a means of identifying, evaluating anqmanagmg the significant risks
facing the Company. ‘ o

Liquidity risk

Working capital and funding requirements are managed from available cash resources, or by making
use of intercompany facilities as part of the Arcadis N.V. group. in order to fund special contributions
to the Acer Group Pension Scheme (AGPS) and incentive payments to members, who accepted the
offer to transfer their liabilities out of the AGPS, the Company has 6-year-term unsecured facilities
totalling £nil (31 December 2021: £0.8m) with HSBC plc in the UK.

Credit risk

The Company’s main exposure to credit risk relates to amounts due from customers. In line with
Company policy, approprlate credit checks are performed on potential customers to identify potential
risks. The Company recognises the mcreased credit risk in the current economic climate and seeks to
mitigate this through strong client rela_tlonshlps and advance payments.

Interest rate cash flpw risk
There is limited exposure to interest rate changes. Excluding the net interest cost/income on pension
plan, the Company’s net interest income for 2022 was £1.1m (2021: expense of £1.2m). ‘

Price risk
The nature of the Company's financial instruments means that they are not subject to price risk.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 7
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

* Financial risks (continued)

Foreign exchange risk :

The Company has some exposure to forelgn exchange risk through transactions in currencies other
than GBP sterling. E§tabl|shed procedures exist to monitor foreign exchange risks in accordance with
policies set by the uitimate holding company, Arcadis N.V. '

The principal risks and uncertainties for the group are disclosed in the 2022 Annual Report of Arcadis
N.V. (the ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party (pages 131 to 143)), available at:
www.arcadis.com. '

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR)

The Company recognises that our operations and activities have an environmental impact and as we
grow and develop our business, we need to take steps to mitigate equivalent increases in our
emissions where we can do so. For over ten years we have been proactnvely monitoring and reducing
our emissions through the setting of objectlves and targets and mcreasmg awareness amongst our
staff and suppliers.

We have made a public commitment to achieve net zero carbon emissions across our global
operations by 2035, and had our target approved by the Science Based Target Initiative (SBTi) in
February 2022. Due to expansion through acquusmons and an updated Scope 3 inventory, we will be
re-applying in 2023 for updated approval.

As a business we are also aware of our reporting obligations under The Companies (Directors’ Report)
and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018. As such, this year we
are reporting our greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) publicly, demonstrating our commitment to
increasing the transparency with which we communicate our environmental |mpact to our
stakeholders.

Qualification and Reporting Methodology

This report outlines the greenhouse gas emissions arising from the activities that are material to
Arcadis. We report on all material emissions in scope 1 and 2, plus selected scope 3, using an
operational control approach. Since 2010, we have followed a standardised approach in reporting
data consistent with the World Resources Institute (WRI} General Reporting Protocol (GRP).

The methodology used to compile our greenhouse gas emissions inventory is in accordance with the
requirements of the following standards: The WRI G,HG'Prqtocol Corporate Standard (revised
version), UK Government conversion factors published July 2020 by the Department for Business,
Energy & Industrial Strategy (BE!S) and the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(DEFRA) Environmental Reporting Guidelines: Including Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
requirements (SECR) (March 2019).

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited - registered number: 02212959 8
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) (continued)

Summary

Following the reduction in the pandemic, operations have started to return to pre-Covid levels, with
office occupancy increasing, leading to increased consumptions and waste generation. We continue
to review these aspects of our operations. We are updating our Workplace Policy and creating
Workstyle Charters that are framed around our requirement for Arcadlans to consider the needs of
our individual chents, our business and our people when adopting our new and flexible ways of
working — which is a fundamental prlncnple ofour Workstyle Promise. As well as encouraging physical
collaboration in, offlces, we are reviewing our buildings, and where possible, moving into smaller,
more efficient buildings, closer to transport hubs, as part of our Global Workplace Transformation
Programme. ' - '

Reasons for Change in Emissions

Our reported emissions continue to fall this year due to COVID 19, although office energy has started
to increase and is seen to have an impact on the emissions we are éreating Business travel has started
to increase with some staff returning to the offlce, which has led to an increase in energy, paper usage
and waste productlon in our offices.

Reporting Period: 01 January 2022 -31 December 2022
Boundary of report: UK operations only

Scope:
This report covers Arcadis UK operations for the following:

1. Arcadis LLP, registered office 80 Fénchurch Street, London, EC3M 4BY
2. Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited, registered office 80 Fenchurch Street, Lonqon_, EC3M 4BY
3. Arcadis (UK) Ltd, registered office 80 Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 4BY

Reporting Method: GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Sta ndard

Route to compliance with SECR: Mandatory requirements for a Large Organisation (unquoted):

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions: kWh

e Calculation of required emissions into kWh using 2021 UK Government GHG Conversion
Factors for Company ' ' :

* Reporting factors (Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors 2021 - GOV.UK
{(www.gov.uk))

Organisational Boundaries
We report on all material emissions in scope 1 and 2, plus selected scope 3 emissions [1], using an
operational control approach. '

Operational Scope

We have measured our scope 1, 2 and material scope 3 emissions. Figures exclude Serviced buildings
and We Work Offices, as we do not have operational control in these buildings. In 2022 we have
extended Scope 3 to include Commuting figures and Working from Home figures. These have been
calculated from responses gather from an employee survey. '

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 9
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) (continued)

Emission Figures 2022
Table 1. Total Arcadis UK Emissions (01 anua_ry 2022-31 December 2022)

2022

2021

Scope Emissio_rls Source tCOse 1COse 2020 tCOze 2919 tCOze
Natural gas 34 74.72 123.51 226.86
Scope 1 | Refrigerant Leakage 0.0 0.00 0.00 363.48
Vehicles 199.5 194 172.64 159.07
Total Scope 1 202.9 268.72 296.15 749.41
Scope 2 ael’“”c'ty Consumption 177 231 312.20 765.71
Total Scope 2 177 231 312.20 765.71
Private cars & 818 587 601.24 721.59
Motorcycles
Car hire 590 137 226.79 300.60
Taxi hire [5] 16.3 n/a n/a n/a
Air travel 1,620 - 131 407.70 1,460.54
Rail travel 176 165.05 725.00
Public transport [6) 204 n/a n/a "~ nfa
Other Travel
s 3 (International Rail, n/a 48.7 52.37 3.27
cope Eurotunnel & Ferry)
Commuting (7] 762 n/a n/a n/a
Working from home [7] 1,564 n/a n/a n/a
Electric vehicles T&D 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.00
Electricity T&D 16.3 12.59 26.85 65.01
Water (Supply & 0.0 9.60 9.27 19.00
Treatment) :
Paper purchased 495 0.00 0.25 19.00
Waste ' 31 0.63 3.80 7.66
Total Scope 3 5,598.65 | 1,102.52 1,493.33 3,321.67
Total scope 1?2,3 5,978.55 1,602.24 2,101.66 4,836.81
Carbon intensity (tCOe/fte) 1.32 0.52 0.64 1.39.
Total energy usage (kwWh) [3] 947,787 1,016,390 180,128.41 127,738.80

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — regist_ered number: 02212959
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Directors’ report {continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) (continued)

Table 2. Total Arcadis UK Emissions full time equivalent (fte) (01 January 2022-31 December 2022}

Scope 2022 tCOze | 2021 tCOze | 2020 tCOze 2019 tCOze
Scope 1 202.9 268.72 296.15 749.41
Scope 2 177 231 312.20 765.71
Scope 3 {exc ‘ ’

WEH/Commuting) 3,272.65 1,102.52 1,493.31 3,321.69
Scope 3 (inc WFH &

Commuting) 5,598.65 n/a nfa. n/a
Total (exc '

WFH&C}ommuting) 3,652.55 _ 1,602.24 2,101.66 4,836.81
Total (inc WFH &

Commuting) 5,978.55 n/a n/a n/a
Carbon intensity

(£COze/fte) : 1.32 0.52 0.63 139
Total energy usage (kwWh) 947,787 1,016,390 | 3,378,894.46 | 5,279,708.30

2022 Performance

Arcadis are certified to 1SO 14001 and maintain an integrated management system, within this we
have objectlves and targets that are reviewed and challenged each year to demonstrate contmuous
improvement. Arcadis have made a public commitment to achieve net zero carbon emnssnons across
our global operations by 2035, set a Science Based Target, are part of the Pledge to Net Zero and UN
Race to Zero campaigns.

The carbon emissions baseline has been aligned with the Global business, each country has
contributed to the Net Zero approach and will demonstrate how they will achieve a reduction in
carbon emissions. '

To provide a fair summary against normal work activities for the business, we have a baseline against
our 2019 figures. These figures are pre-pandemic and when the business was fully operational and
undertaking normal work in the office, sites and foreign travel activities as part of our everyday
activities.

Other notable trends include:

e Scope 1-the 24% reduction in total scope 1 emissions is related to our policy of exiting less
efficient bulldmgs and entering more efficient bulldmgs with smaller footprints and our
policy of reviewing our fleet vehicles attending site to complete works. This represents a
reduction of 73% lower from the emissions recorded in 2019 (our baseline).

e Scope 2 —our location-based emissions from electricity in 2022 is at 177 Co2e (Tonnes), is a
reduction on the previous year, again as a result of our office strategy to me\/e into
environments that are sustainable and SMART. This represents a reduction of 77% lower
from the emissions recorded in 2019 (our baseline). o

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited - registered number: 02212959 11
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (S.ECR) (continued)
2022 Performance (continued)

* Scope 3 - our selected scope 3 emissions have increased by 408% in 2021, this is because
we have extended the scope to include emissions associated with working from home and
commuting, énd the return of the flights following the easing of restrictions that were in
place during the pandemic as normal operations are returhi_ngi As one of our objectives'is to
reduce Air Travel by 50% in 5 years’ time, this data set is beiﬁg reviewed closely and is being
highlighted at senior levels. If the new data set is removed, our scope 3 emissions would
showa 1, 5% increase agamst our 2019 baseline.

Energy and Carbon Action

During 2022 we have continued to work hard to reduce our energy consumption and assocvated
carbon emissions, partlcularly in our buildings, this is an initiative that began in 2020. This has seena
move in a number of our offices that were not as Carbon and Energy efficient as others; to date we
have moved from or about to move to Smart buildings at the followmg locations:

- Birmingham
- Cambridge

- Cardiff

- Croydon

- East Kilbride
- Guildford

- leeds

- York

During 2022, as a result of reduced attendance due to COVID, Birmingham closed and moved to a
smaller office in September 2022 to take into account the lower demand. Cardiff never returned to
using both floors after Covid, and has reduced -using the gas boiler for heating since air conditioning
units are now optnmnzed We also continue to review capacuty and usage at our buildings, which has
led to us reducmg office space at the followmg locatvons :

- Cardiff
- Exeter
- PIquuth

Any office move that takes place where interim offices are required, we are using WeWork offices
who have a sustamabllnty policy and approach to each of their offices, so that we continue to fulfil
our obligations.

Renewable energy is used in all offices except for Bristol, which does not fall under Arcadis’ direct
control. We continue to liaise with the landlord to encourage the switch to renewable sources.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 12
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) (continued)
Energy and Carbon Action (continued)

During 2022, we carried out a review-of the operation of our photocopiers/printers, and are workihg
on a plan to remove or replace with more efﬁciont models where possible.

Timing of the AV screens in London, Birmingham, York and Guildford are now controlled so.they are
turned off overnight.

We continue to monitor all electrical usage in all our offices, this enables to monitor the cost and
consumption for each office and tdentlfy any potenttal issues or opportumtles

10% CO2 reduction target was set for 2022  the follownng table shows how much CO2 was used in

2022 compared to 2021

2021 2022 % Change
Electricity (tCO2e) 231 177 (23)
Gas (tCO2e) 74.72 3.4 (95)
Total ' 305.72 | 180.4 (42)

Electricity — we decreased by 23% CO2 compared to 2021.
Gas — we decreased by 95% CO2 compared to 2021.

Future plans

Arcadis are planning to continue to reduce our property portfolio where possible, which will provide
further energy savings as new locations are likely to be smaller and more energy efficient.

We continue to regularly report on energy usage as part of a global reporting tool. Workplace
Facilities Team will carry out the following activities as part of thelr sustamabnlnty plan, including:

e Monitor and recording any energy saving activities

e Bi- annoal monitoring of appliances hot turned off when not.in use

* Review any EPC reports for new propertles or renewed and consider activities for plan.in
2023

e ESOS Phase 3 Reporting

As part of our commitment to achieving net zero emissions across our global operations, we are
implementing a carbon management pohcy which will be signed off by.Senior Management and
cascaded throughout the organisation.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 13
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting (SECR) (continued)
Energy and Carbon Action (continued)

As Arcadis have recently made a number of acquusmons, busmess changes and office consolldatlons,
a review will be undertaken on the appropriateness of the 2019 baseline in its current form.
Discussions have already begun on 1mplement|ng the carbon management policy and integrating
carbon reduction plans,

[1] UK emissions only, as required under the SECR reporting obligations of a Iarge unquoted
organlsatlon

[2] Refrigerant emissions currently reported are associated with buildings only.

(3] Energy reporting includes kWh from scope 1, scope 2 and scope 3 (as required by the SECR
regulation).

[4] Location based approach used to calculate Scope 2 Electricity consumption.

[5] Taxi data was only separater available from 2022.

[6] Public transport mcludes rail and other travel previously separated ,

[7] Commuting and WFH emissions have been extrapolated from responses to an internal survey
undertaken in Arcadis in 2022. Further surveys are anticipated and this information will be refined as
more information is gathered

Stakeholder engagement
For Arcadis stakeholder engagement means participating in conversations with internal and external
stakeholders to deepen our insights into their needs and expectations.

Our engagement work in 2022 and the interactions with our stakeholders were a continuum with
moments of intense activity around the Human Rights Roundtable and the Arcadis Sustainability Day.
Arcadis’ stakeholders’ views are invaluable because they help us identify global trends, market
expectations and maximize our |mpact We seek to engage with them in a variety of methods including
regular surveys on toplcs such as employee and customer satisfaction.

Post balance sheet events

On 28 February 2023, the Company proposed to pay a dividend of £66,007,248.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 14
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Going concern
The Board of Arcadls UK (Holdings) Limited, which manages nsk across all its UK subsndlanes and
businesses, has considered the Company’s ability to continue as a gplqg,concern.

The Company continues to meet its day-to-day working capital req’uir‘ements through its cash-
reserves, cash generated from its ordinary co_t_irs_e of business and occasionally through borrqw,ihgs.
The Company’s forecasts.and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trédihg
performance, show that the Company shbuldA be able to operate within the level of its cu rrent cash
reserves, forecasted cash generated through its activities and borrowing 'facilities The directors
have a reasonable expectatlon that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operatlonal
existence for the foreseeable future. A!though the directors do not consider it necessary, additional
financing can be made avallable by the uIt|mate parent, Arcadus N.V. Therefore, the Company
continues to adopt the gc_nng concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

Directors

The directors of the Company who were in office durlng the year and up to the date of signing the
financial statements are set out on page 1.

Directors’ interests

There were no significant' contracts existing during, or at the end of, the year ended 31 December
2022, with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than service contracts) in which the
directors are, or were, materlally interested,

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration has been disclosed in note 5 of the financial statements.

Branches outside the UK

The Company currently operates via overseas branches in Finland, Romania, Ireland, the Isle of Man,
and India. ,

Corporate responsibility

The Company’s ultimate parent company is Arcadis N.V. Arcadis N.V.’s annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2022 contains the Group’s corporate responsubllaty report which details the
strategy, objectives and performance the Company follows in maintaining high standards pf corporate
governance. ' a

Employment policies

Employment policies are discussed in the Strategic report on page 6.

Arcadis Consuiting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 15
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Post-employment benefits

The Company operates a defined benefit scheme, which was closed to future beneft accrual in April
2011, and a defined contnbutron scheme, as detailed in note 16.

The gross surplus in the defined benefit scheme at 31 December 2022 decreased to. £3 5m (31
December 2021: gross surplus of £15.5m). Contributions to the scheme by the Company: amounted
to £3.1m.in the year. The present value of the unfunded liabilities at 31 December 2022 amounted to
£0.3m (31 December 2021 £0.5m).

The main assumptions in valuing the deficit are shown in note 16. The sensitivities of the AGPS scheme
liabilities to changes in these assum ptlons are as follows:

Assumption Change in assumption Indicative effect on scheme
Ilabllmes
Discount rate Increase / decrease by 0.5% D,ecreas_e / increase by £9m
Rate of inflation Increase / decrease by 0.5% Increase / decrease by £6m
Longevity Increase / decrease by 1year Increase / decrease by £6m
Share capital

Full details of the Company’s share capital can be found in note 17 to the financial statements,

Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the directors have prepared the financial statements in. accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Umted Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprlsmg FRS 101
“Reduced Dlsclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing the ﬁnancual statements, the directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; .

» state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless itis mappropnate to presume
that the Company wull continue in business.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 16
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Directors’ report (continued)
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

Statement of dlrectors responsibilities in respect of the financial statements {continued)

The directors are also responsible for safeguardmg the assets of the company and hence for taklng
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the. fmancnal statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each director in office at the date tﬁe directors’ report is approved;

e so faras the dlrector is aware, there j is.no relevant audit information of which the company s
auditors are unaware; and

¢ they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as.a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establlsh that the company's
auditors are aware of that mformatnon

Directors’ third-party an_d pension scheme indemnity provisions

The Company has i in place qualifying third-party indemnity provisions and qualifying pensmn scheme
indemnity. provnsuons for all directors of the Company and associated companies which were in force
during the financial year and also at the date of approval of the directors’ report.

independent auditor_s

The independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, were appointed during the year and have
indicated their wullmgness to continue in. office, and a resolution that they be re- appomted will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the board
DocuSlgned by: . ‘
E : - . -
E73A3158EF48400... -
S Bimpson
Director

20 July 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Arcadis Consulting (UK)
Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited's financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its profit for the year
then ended; ' - ' '

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable faw); and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. ‘

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report’), which compnse the Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022; the Statement of comprehensive
income, the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements which
include a descnptlon of the significant accounting pollc1es

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. '

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concemn are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Reporting on other mformatlon

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other mfprmat:on. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obteined
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are requlred to perform prooedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material mnsstatement of this other mformatnon we are required to report that fact. We have nothmg to
report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors! report, we also cons:dered whether the disclosures requnred by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006, requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is cons:stent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with apphcable legal reqmrements

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any matenal misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the dnrectors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with

laws and regulations related to UK tax legisiation, employment law, pension regulations, data privacy law and industry
regulations, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial

19



DocuSign Envelope ID: A4204873-B167-4428-BF 3A-ECA1A46FA3CF

statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as
the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated managerﬁent‘s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
potential management bias in accounting estimates including applying principles of revenue recognition for long term
contracts and recoverability of WIP and the inappropriate posting of journals to manipulate financial results. Audit
procedures performed by the engagement team included: '

¢ Enquiry of management, those charged with governance and the entity’s in-house legal and compliance team around
actual and potential Imgation and claims;

¢ Reviewing minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

. Revuewmg financial statement disclosures and testmg to supporting documentat«on to assess compliance with-
applicable laws and regulations and

¢ Auditing the risk of management override of controls, including through testing journal entries and other adjustments
for appropriateness and testing accounting estimate:s' (because of the risk of management bias)

o Performing audit procedurgs to evaluate the accounting estimates related to revéh‘ue recognition, in particular the
percentage of completion

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and fransactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve dehberate concealment by, for exampie forgery or intentiona!
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands
it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

g

Jason Clarke (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cardiff

21 July 2023
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Income statement
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

2022 . 2021
Note £'000 £'000
Turnover SR 3 408,158 -3,18;849
Staff costs 5 (238,566) (185,630)
Depreciation and amortisation (5,326) (5,734)
Other operating expenses (123,303) (86,285)
Other operating income 4 -
Operating profit V 4 40,967 41,200
Profit before interést and taxation 40,967 41,200
Finance income 1,699 1,669
Finance costs (289) (608)
Finance income. - net | 6 1,410 1,061
Profit before taxation 42,377 42,261
Income tax expense 7 (8,864) (8;,..298)
Profit for the financial year 33,513 | 33,963
The above income statement should be read in.conjunction with the at;jcompanying notes.
21
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

2022 . 2021

o _ Note - £'000 £'000
Profit for the financial year T C 33,513 33,963
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or. loss:
Remea.surements‘of postfemploymgnt benefit (15,510) 22,601
obligations 16
Movement on deferred tax related to post- :
employment benefit obligation ' 12 3,865 (5,224)
Currency. translation differences (7) -

. 3 - f o

Total other comprehensive (expense)/income for (11,652) 17,377
the year, net of tax : B
Total comprehensive income for thé year v 21,861 51,340

The above statement pflg;imprehensive incomg should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes. ' '
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

2022 : 2021

Note £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 -1 285
Property, plant and equipment 9 12,202 10,059
Right-of-use-assets 10 7,490 3,823
Investments 11 - -
Pension asset 16 3,529 15,495
23,276 29,662
Current assets
Trade and other receivables: :
Amounts falling due within one year 13 150,187 116,920
Cash and cash equiyalénts 1,356 2,804
‘ ’ o ‘ 151,543 119,724
Current liabilities ' '
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (41,609) (39,198)
Lease liabilities o ' 10 (1,356) (1,840)
Provisions-for liabilities 15 : (1,674) (1,471)
‘ ‘ | (44,639) (42,509)
Net current assets i 106,908 77,215
Total assets less current liabilities 130,180 106,877
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one
year .
Post-employment benefits : 16 - -
Lease liabilities 10 (6,133) (1,917)
Deferred tax liabilities 12 (862) (3,443)
Provisions for liabilities 15 (1,434) (1,627)
' (8,429) (6,987)
Net assets 121,751 99,890
Equity
Called up share capital 18 5,830 5,830
Retained earnings 115,921 94,060

Total shareholders’ funds ‘ 121,751 99,890
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Statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

The above statement of financial position sho_gld be read in ‘conjunction with the accompanying
notes. ' o

The financial statemént_s on pages 21 to 60 were authorised for-issue by the board Qf directors on
20 July 2023 and were si'gned on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:
[573A31595F46400 " '
S Bimpson
Director
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Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Total
Called up Retained shareholders'
share capital earnings funds
£'000 £'000 £'000
Balanceat 1 Janu__ary 2021 5,830 42,720 48,550
Profit for the financial year - 33,963 33,963
Other comprehensive income for the year:
Remeafsurement; of post-employment ber_;eﬁt i 22,601 22,601
obligations i
Movement on deferred tax related to post-
employment benefit obligation - (5,224) (5,224)
Total other co,mprghe,ns,i_ve‘ income for the year 17,377 17,377
Total comprehensive income for the year . 51,340 51,340
Balance at 31 December 2021 5,830 94,060 99,890
Balance at 1 January 2022 5,830 94,060 99,890
Profit for the financial year - 33,513 33,513
Other comprehensive expense for the year:
Rer'neasurement_s of pp;t-employment,beneﬁg ) (15,510) (15,510)
obligations ‘ : ’
Movement on deferred t.ax r'e]ated to post- i 3,865 3,865
employment benefit ohllgatlon
Currency translation differences - (7) (7)
Total other comprehensive expense for the year - {11,652) {11,652)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 21,861 21,861
Balance at 31 December 2022 5,830 115,921 121,751

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes. ' ' '
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. General Information and statement of compliance
The principal activities, of the Company are the provision of multinational design and engmeermg
consultancy servuces

The Company is a private company limited by shares, registered in England and Wales and is
incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is:

80 Fenchurch Street
London
EC3M 4BY

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accountlng policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These polncnes have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwuse
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The individual financial statements of Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited have been prepared in

compliance with United ngdom Accounting Standards, including Fmancnal Reporting Standard 101,
“‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” (“FRS 101%). The financial statements have been prepared under
the hlstoncal cost convention and in accordance with the Companles Act 2006 as appllcable to
companies usmg FRS 101

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the use of Certain critical
accounting estimates.

It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, The areas involving a high degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estlmates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in the relevant
notes.

The following exemptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of

these financial statements, in accordance with FRS 101:

- Paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2, Share-based payment (details of the number and
weighted-average exercise prices of share options, and how the fair value of goods or services
received was determined).

- IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

- Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13, Fair value measurement (disclosure of valuation technlques and
inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities).

- Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements comparative information requnrements
in respect of:

i. paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;

ii. paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment;

iii. paragraph 118(e) of 1AS 38 Intanglble assets (reconcmattons between carrymg amount at the
beginning and end of the period).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary ofvsignificant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of gregaratlon {continued)

The followmg paragraphs of IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

i. 10(d) (statement of cash flows)

ii. 10(f) (a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding peruod when an
entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its fmancnal statements, or when it reclassifies items in |ts financial statements);

iii. 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS);

iv. 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow statements);

v. 38B-D (additional comparatlve mformatlon)

vi. 40A-D (requirements for a third statement of financial position);

vii. 111 (cash flow statement information); and . )

viii. 134-136 (capital management disclosures).

IAS 7, Statement of cash flows.

Paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

(requirement for the disclosure of mformatuon when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has

been issued but i is not yet effective). o

Paragraphs 17 and 18A of IAS 24, Related party disclosures (key management compensatlon and

key management services provided by a separate management entlty)

The requirements in IAS 24, Related party. d/sclosures to disclose related party transactions entered

into between two or-more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to

the transaction is wholly owned by such a member.

Paragraphs 130(f)(ii), 130 (f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e) of IAS 36, lmpa/rment of

assets (disclosures when the recoverable amount is fair value less costs of disposal, assumptions

involved in estnmatlng recoverable amounts of cash generating Units containing goodwill or
intangible assets wnth mdefnnute useful lives and management’s approach to determmmg these
amounts).

The requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118,

119(a) to (c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 (significant changes in contract assets and llab:htles)

2.2 Exceptional items
Certain items, for example impairment charges in respect of intangible assets or investments, are

presented sepafétely in the income statement as exceptional items. The directors have judged these
should be disclosed separately by order of their size, nature or incidence in order to provide a clear
and consistent presentation of the Company’s performance.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Going concern _
The Board of Arcadis UK (Holdings) Limited, which manages risk across all its UK subsidiaries and

businesses, has considered the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company continues to meet its day-to-day working capital requirements through its cash
reserves, cash generated from its ordinary course of business and occasionally through borrowings.
The Company’s forecasts and projections, takmg account of reasonably possible changes in trading
performance, show that the Company should be able to operate within the level of its current cash
reserves, forecasted cash generated through its activities and borrowing facilities. The directors have
a reasonable expectatlon that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operatlona!
existence for the foreseeable future. Although the directors do not consider it necessary, additional
financing can be made available by the ultimate parent, Arcadis N.V. Therefore, the Company
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.

2.4 New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the Company
There are no amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effectlve and

relevant to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

2.5 Consolidation

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of its intermediate parent Arcadis Consulting Europe
Limited and of its ultimate parent, Arcadis N.V, Itis included in the consohdated financial statements
of Arcadis N.V. which are publicly available.

Therefore, the Company is exempt by virtue of section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements are separate financial statements.

2.6 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised by the Group following the five-step model in IFRS 15, consisting of:

1. \dentification of the contract;

2. Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

3. Determination of the transaction price;

4. Allocation of the transaction price to performance obligation§ in the contract;

5. Recognition of revenue.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
VAT. ltincludes m:tlai amounts agreed in the contract plus any varnatlons in contract work and variable
consideration, to the extent that it is highly probably that its mclustqn will not result in a g._lgmfcant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty has been subsequently resolved.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant gﬂ)y_n_t_i_nggoﬁcies {continued)

2.6 Revenue recognition (continued)

The Company recognise‘s revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer.
For performance obligations that are transferred over time, revenue is recognised in the Income
statement in proportion to the percentage of completion of the transaction at reporting date. The
percentage of completion is measured by actual costs incurred in relation to total estimated costs. In
the Company’s view this best reflects the value delivered to the customer in a business that mainly
uses human and mtellectual capital (of its employees) for completron ofthe performance obligations
towards the customer.

For performance obligations that are transferred at a point in time, revenues and costs are recognised
in the Income statement when the customer receives the ablllty to direct the use of the asset and
substantially obtains all the benefits of it.

Contract costs and contract cost assets

Contract costs mclude the costs to fulfil a contract such as direct labaur, costs of materials, services
of third parties and subcontractors, and costs that are exphcntly chargeable to the customer under the
contract. They are recogmsed as an asset in Contract assets and liabilities, if they are expected to be
recovered

Costs to obtain a contract are only recognised as a contract cost asset in Contract assets and liabilities
if they are mcremental and expected to be recovered. They are recognised on a systemic basis
consistent with the recognltlon of costs to fulfll a contract.

Loss provisions

Estimates of project management are used to assess the progress and estimated outcome of a
performance oblig{étioanhen it becomes probable that the tbtal expected costs to complete all
performance obligations in a contract exceed the total transaction price of these performance
obligations, a loss provision is recognlsed for the lower of the unavoidable costs and the costs of
termination.

2.7 Cash flow statement

A cash flow statement is not required at 31 December 2022 as the Company is exempt from the
requirements of IAS 7, Statement of Cashflows, asitisa wholly owned subsidiary of Arcadis N.V. which
prepares a consohdated cash flow statement. The financial statements of Arcadis N.V. are ‘publicly
available.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant accounting' olicies {continued

2.8 Intangible assets
Computer software. :

Costs associated with maintaining computer: software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attrlbutable to the design and testing of identifiable and
unique software products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;
Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it; '

There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate ‘probable future economic
benefits;

e Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the software product are available; and :

s The expenditure attributable to the software product during |ts development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software
development employee costs and the appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs prevnously recognised as expenses are not recognised as an asset in
subsequent periods.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful
lives, which does not exceed five years.

Purchased software is initially recognised at cost and amortised over three years.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses. Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of ‘any other
consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs directly. attributable to making the asset
capable of operating as intended. Borrowing costs directly attributable to assets under ¢onstruction
and which m'eet the recognition criteria in IAS 23 are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment other than land on a stralght line basis
over its expected useful life, less their estlmated reS|duaI value as follows:

Leasehold properties and
improvements within fixtures and
fittings Over the period of the lease or break clause date

Computer hardware, equipment,
fixtures and fittings - 2-5 years

Restoration assets within fixtures and
fittings Over the period of the lease or break clause date
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of sig niﬁcant accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation {continued}

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on the
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement in the period of derecognition.

2.10 Leases
The Company leases various offices, storage unlts, IT equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are
typically made for fnxed periods of 6 months to 'S years but may have éxtension options.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed when the Company has both the
right to direct the identified asset’s use and to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from that
use. '

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the
consideration to these components based on its relative stand- alone prices. Non-lease components
are not included in the right-of-use asset and lease liability but accounted for separately

Lease terms are generally negotiated by Arcadis's UK real estate or procurement teams, with support
from the Global Workplace director where needed. Contracts are negotlated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of terms and condltlons such as early termmatlon clauses and renewal
rights.

Right-of-use assets

At commencement of a lease, the Company measures right-of-use assets initially at cost, and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. '

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprise the following:

e Amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
at or after the commencement date;
Any initial direct costs; and
Restoration costs, i.e. estimate of the costs to be incurred for dlsmantlmg, removal and/or
restoration to the conditions required by the terms of the lease

See note 2.28 for the accounting policy on provisions for right-of-use assets (restoration provisions).

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
termona stralght -line basis.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of si;hiﬁcant accounting policies (continued)

2.10 Leases (continged)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are mntnally measured at the. present value of the future Iease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date dvscounted using an implicit rate of interest, unless thls cannot be
readily determined, in which case an incremental borrowing rate is used. The Iease liability is
subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments
made. It is remeasured when thereis a change in future lease payments arising from a change i in index
or rate, a change in the estimate  or the amount expected to be payable under a resndual value
guarantee, or as appropnate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is rea:sonahly certain not to be exercised.

Judgement is applied to determine th'e lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that
include re‘newal and termination o'ptions The_assessment of whether the Company is reaebnably
certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which sugmflcantly affects the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised. At the reporting date aII facts and circumstances are
considered that create an economic incentive in determining whether it is reasonably certain that an
extension or termination option will be recognlsed. Changes in the estimate are recpgnlsed
"prospectively. ' '

Lease incentives

Lease incentives are deducted from the right-of-use assets if received before the commencement
date of the lease; they are deducted from the Iease liability if received at or afterthe commencement
of the lease.

Amounts received for leasehold improvements are depreciated over a period not Ionger than the
lease term.

Short-term a_nd low value leases

Payments associated with short-term and/or low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in proflt or loss. Short-term Ieases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise items of IT equlpment
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant accountin oligies continued

2.10 Leases (continued)
Rent concessions - practical expedient

In response to the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic, the International Accounting Standards Board
issued an amendment to IFRS 16 Leases to prowde practical relief for lessees in account;ng for rent
concessions. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether ehgvble rent
concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to accpunt for them as if they were
not lease modifications, o '

The Company was not in receipt of rent concessions due to the pandemic and therefore it was not
necessary to avail the practical expedlent during the financial year.

Information about critical accounting estimates in the appllcatlon of Iease accountlng is dlsclosed in
note 2.30.

2.11 Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, fair value through other comprehensive income; and at amortlsed cost. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determmes the
classification of its f' nancial assets at initial recognmon

(a) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ihcome (FVOCI) comprise:

- Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the Company has irrevocably
elected at initiai recognition to recognise in this category. These are strategic investments and
the Company, considers this classiﬁéation to be more relevant.

- Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the
objective of the Company’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets. ‘

(b) Financial assets at amortised cost’

The Company cIassnfles its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria
are met: :
- The asset is held within a business model whose objectlve is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and
- The contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of prmcnpal and
interest.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The following financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

- Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost (see note
2.12(a) and (b) above.

- Equity investments that are held for trading, and

- Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognlse fair value gains and losses
through OCI.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant accounting 6Iicies continued

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equnvalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term

highly liquid |nvestments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilitiés.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provnsnon forimpairment, A provision for |mpa|rment oftrade
receivables is establnshed when there is objectlve evidence that the Company will not be able to
collect all amounts due- according to the original terms of receuvables Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probablhty that the debtor will enter bankru ptcy orfinancial reorganisation, and defauit
or delinquency in’ payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income statement within operating expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables includes contract assets, which are stated at cost plus attributable profit
to the extent that such profit is reasonably ¢ certain and after making provision for

any foreseeable losses in completing contracts, less payments in advance received on contracts. Cost
comprises the direct costs of providing the service, together with directly attributable overheads.
Payment in advance on contracts represent excess amounts billed over that earned and are included
separately within trade and other payables,

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit Iosses WhICh uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

2.14 Creditors
Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordlnary course
of business from suppllers

Creditors are mntnally recognised at fair value and subsequently. measured at amortised cost using the
effective mterest method

2.15 Investment in subsidiaries
investment in subsndnanes are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.16 Hive-up transactions
The transfer of the net assets of, and the business undertaken by, a subsidiary to its parent company

(hive-up transaction) is accounted for using predecessor accounting. Where a hive-up takes place
some time after an acquisition, the facts and circumstances surrounding the transaction are reviewed
in order to determine whether the carrying value of the intangible assets as recognised on original
acquisition remain appropriate.

2.17 Acquisition of trade and assets
Acquisitions of the trade and assets of businesses are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3,

Business combinations.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2. Summary of significant accounting | olicies (continued

2.18 Long-term contract accounting
Contract assets represent work undertaken but not yet invoiced to, customers These amounts, which

are included in receivables, are stated at cost plus attributable profit to the extent that such profit is
reasonably certain and after making provision for any foreseeable losses in completing contracts. For
this purpose, cost comprises the direct costs of providing the service, together with directly
attributable overheads.

Contract liabilities represent the excess of amounts billed over those earned and are mcluded in
payables.

2.19 Pension obligation
The Company operates both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes. For defined

contribution schemes, contributions are ch,a'rged as an expense to'the Profit and Loss account as they
fall due in accordance with the scheme rules.

For defined benefit schemes, the obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the Projected
Unit Method. Actuarial gains and losses, which represent differences between the expected and
actual return on the plan assets and the effect of changes in the actuarial assumptions, are recognised
in full in the financial year in which they oceu;in’ other comprehensive income.

The amount charged or credited to financ_e costs is a net interest amount calculated by applying the
liability discount rate to the net defined liability or asset.

The defined retirement benefit obligation recognised in the statement of financial position comprises
the total for each plan of the present value of the benefit obligation using a discount rate determined
by market yields on high quallty corporate bonds less the fair values of the scheme assets at the
balance sheet date.

2.20 Foreign currencies
The Company'’s functional currency and presentation currency is pounds sterling, Transactions in

foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate
ruling at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are recorded in the income statement. '

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost on a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measbred at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined.

Overseas branches’ balance sheets and income statements accounts are translated into sterling at the
closing and average rates of exchange respectively. This creates foreign exchange translation
differences which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.21 Research and development expenditure
Research expendlture is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development

projects relating to the development of new products or significant enhancement of existing products
are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a success, considering
its commercial and technological feasibility and costs can be measured reliably. Development costs
that do not meet these specific criteria are not recognised as intangible assets and are written off in
the income statement.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959 35



DocuSign Envelope ID: A4204873-B167-4428-BF 3A-ECA1A46FA3CF

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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2. Summary of si niﬁeantaccountin. olicies (continued

2.22 Current and defe_rred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensrve income or directly in shareholders funds. In this case, the tax is also recognlsed
in other comprehenswe income or directly in shareholders funds, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated o_n the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Management penodrcally evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax reguiatlon is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and habllrtres and their ca rrymg amounts in the financial statements.

However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; or arise from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax llabrhty is settled.

Deferred income tax. assets are recognlsed only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxablé entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.23 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Company has some exposure to foreign exchange risk through transactions in currencies other

than GBP Sterling. The Company has not applled hedge accountmg and all derlvatlves are measured
at fair value through profit and loss.

2.24 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs dlrectly attributable to the issue of new ordmary shares or optlons are shown in
equity asa deductton, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.25 Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.

Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the flnanaal statements (contmued)
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued

2.25 Borrowings (continued[

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transactlon costs of the Ioan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there i is no evndence that itis probable that some
or all of the facnllty will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for hqundlty services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

2.26 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend dlstnbutlons to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a Isablllty in the Company S
financial statements ‘in the period in WhICh the dividends are - approved by the Company S
shareholders

2.28 Provisions for liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgatlon,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obllgatlon Where the effect of the time
value of money is materlal provisions are discounted.

Vacant properties

Where appropriate, provisions are made based on the estimated net present value of future rental
payments under a non-cancellable lease, Iess sublettmg mcome where properties are vacant or the
lesser of cancellatlon costs.

Dilapidations provision

For lease contracts that require the Company to maintain an underlying asset during the lease term
and/or restore it to its original condition before returning to the lessor at the end of the lease, a
restoration provision is recognised when the obligation arises. For the same amount, a right-of-use
asset is recognised and depreciated over the lease term. The discount rate used is the Incremental
Borrowing Rate.

Additionally, for the Company's property Ieasing arrangements, there is an obligation to repair minor
damages incurred during continued occupancy of the property, Wthh is classnﬁed as 'wear and tear".
This liability is charged to profit and Ioss over the remaining life ofthe lease.

The provisions are expected to be utilised by 2035 as the leases terminate.

2.29 Share-based payments
Equity-settied share-based incentives are provided to certain employees by Arcadis N.V., the

Company'’s ultimate controlling parent company. Arcadis N.V. recharge the Company for these and
these are settled by cash. The fair value of the granted options and shares is measured using a Monte
Carlo simulation model.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued

2.30 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accountmg

estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the r_e!ated actual results. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on histo,ric9l experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment- to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below:

(a) Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment

The annual depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment is sensitive to changes in the
estimated useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and
residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended as necessary to reflect current estimates,
based on technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical
condition of the assets. See note 9 for the carrying amount of each property, plant and equipment.

(b) Defined benefit pension scheme

The Company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain individuals who provide services to
the Company. The cost of these benefits and the present value of the obligation depend on a humber
of factors, mcludmg life expectancy, asset valuations, and the discount rate on corporate bonds.
Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension obligation in the statement of
financial position. The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends, See note 16 for
the disclosures of the defined benefit pension scheme.

(c) Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for its fixed price contracts to
deliver services. Use of the percentage of completion method requires the Company to estimate the
work performed to date as a proportion of the expected work for the whole contract. The Company
will also assess the ability to bill and collect these amounts when determining revenue to be
recognised. '

Due to the volume and complexity of the Company’s many contracts in existence at any one time it is
not practicable to quantify how changes to the assumptions used for each individual contract would
affect the Company’s financial statements.

Estimates of project management are used to assess the progress and estimated outcome of a
performance obligation. When it becomes probable that the total expected costs to complete all
performance obligations in a contract exceed the total transaction price of these performance
obligations, a loss provision is recognised for the lower of the unavoidable costs and the costs of
termination.

(d) Professional indemnity insurance excesses

The provision reflects management’s best éstimate of the likely cost of professional indemnity
insurance excesses on notified claims in accordance with Company policy. As the Company is in
negotiation with regards to claims the final outcomes are subject to a considerable number of factors.
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2. Summary of sign_iﬂéan't accounting policies (continued)
2.30 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions {continued)

(e) Lease accounting

The lease. payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in.the. Company, the Incremental BorrOng
Rate ("IBR") is used, being the rate that the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary

to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a svmllar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

The IBR is determined on the Company's behalf by Arcadis N.V.'s corporate reporting team in
consultation with an external financial analysis firm with global expertise. A build-up approach is used
which starts with a risk-free interest rate followed by further adjustments for crédit risk based on the
country and currency of the lessee. The IBR is also adjusted dependent on the niéturity of the lease,
being the remaining Iease term at the pomt at which the lease is recognised. IBR is reassessed by
Arcadis N.V. every.six months to take account of changing country and market condltnons

The Company used incremental borrowing rates specific to each lease and the rates range between
0.25% and 2.70%.

3. Turnover

Geographical split of turnover:

2022 2021
£'000 £/000
United Kingdom 380,051 293,031
Rest of Europe 17,705 5,591
Rest of World 10,402 20,227
408,158 318,849

The timing of revenue recognition in 2022 was as follows
I ‘ 2022 2021
£7000 £000
At a point in time - -
Over time ‘ 408,158 318,849
408,158 318,849

The Company has recognized the following assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers:
' 2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Trade receivables 24,966 23,393
Contract assets - 22,957 13,300
Contract liabilities (23,296) (24,368)
24,627 12,325
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. Turnover (contlnued)

The table below includes revenue expected to be recognlzed in, the future related to.

performance obhgatlons that are (partially) unsatisfied at the reporting date.

2023 2024 2025 After 2025
£000 £/000 £/000 £'000
Expected Gross rév’enue’ o
from (partvally) unsatcsf ed 172,189 21,233 3,837 21,894
performance obhgatlons

4. Operating profit
This has been stated after charging/(crediting):

2022

£'000
Staff costs (note Sg) : 238,566
Depreciation of property, plant and eq'uipment 2,674
Amortisation of intangibles o 237
Short-term lease expense 235
Low value lease expense 1
Impairment of trade receivables (note 13) 237
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses ' (54)
Subcontracting costs 69,628
Intercompany Eherges 25,431
R&D tax credit (1,029)

Total
£'000

219,153

2021
£'000

185,630
2,297
278

80

1

230
199
49,223
12,236
(698)

Intercompany. charges mcludes property management charge, IT mfrastructure costs and

management fee.

Auditors’ remuneration of £0.1m (2021: £0.1m) was paid by Arcadis LLP (a fellow sybsid_iary
undertaking) on behalf of the Company in respect of audit work performed in the UK. No fees
were payable to the Company’s audltors and their assocuates for any other servnces in the

current or prior years.

5. Employees and directors

(a) Staff costs
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Management charge for staff 238,566 185,630
' 238,566 185,630
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5.

Employees and directors (continued)

The Company employs no staff of its own, Staff costs consist-of management charges from
other group subsrdlarles for the.provision of employees, partners and contingent workers of
£238.6m (2021 £185 6m).

(b) Directors’ remuneration
2022 2021
£'000. £'000

Aggregate emoluments (including benefits in kind) - -

Contributions to defined benefit schemes - -

The directors are remunerated by way of a profit share from a fellow group subsidiary,
Arcadis LLP. It is not possible to apportion drrectors services to individual entities wrthm the
group. Consequently, no recharge to the Company has been made in respect of these costs

No drrectors (2021: none) have benefits accruing under the Company’s defined benefit
scheme. The defined benefit scheme was closed to future accrual on 30 April 2011, upon
which exrstmg members were given the opportunity to transfer to the defined contribution
scheme.

Retirement benefits are not accruing to any directors (2021: nil) under a defined contribution
scheme. ' ’ ’

No directors (2021: nil) received shares under the Long-Term lncentive Plan during the year.

Included within the directors’ remuneration above is an amount of £nil (2021 £nil) recharged
to fellow group compames for their servnces

No directors (2021: nil) exercised share options during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

5. Employees an_d directors (continued).

In respect of the highest paid director:

Aggregate empluments (including benefits in kind and
excluding gains on shares and options)

Contributions to defined benefit schemes

2022
£'000

2021
£000

No share options were received by the hlghest paid director under the Long-Term.Incentive Plan
during the year. (2021 nil). No shares were exercised by the hnghest paid director dunng the year
(2021: nil). The hlghest paid director has not participated in a defined benefit pension scheme in

the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 nil).

6. Finance income and costs

Finance income

Finance i mcome on loans to related parties
Net interest income on pension plan (note 16)
Provisions — unwmdlng of discount (note 15)
Other fmance income

Flnance income

Finance costs:

Bank borrowings

Net interesi ex'pense on pension plan (note 16)
Provisions — unwmdmg of discount (note 15)
Lease liabilities :

Other fmance costs

Financevgost's

Net finance income

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959

2022 2021
£000 £000
(1,152) (1,659)
(341) -
(190) -
(16) (10)
(1,699) ~ (1,669)
- 119
- 80
109 125
180 284.
289 608
(1,410) (1,061)
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Notes to the fmancnal statements (contmued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

7. Income tax exp_epse
Tax expense included in profit or loss

Current tax: A
UK-corporation tax on profits for the year
Foreign tax on proflts for the year '
Double tax relgef :
Adjustments.in respect of prior years.

Total current tax .

Deferred tax:

- Origination, 'a.,rid reversal of timing differences (note 12)
- Adjustments.in respect of prior \{ears .

- Impact of change in UK tax rate (bgite 12)

Total deferred tax ‘

Tax on profit

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
7,270 7,327
187 230
(184) (224)
308 338
7,581 7,671
683 655
384 75

216 (103)
1,283 627
8,864 8,298

Tax expense for tHe year is higher (2021: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK for the year-ended 31 December 2022 of 19.00% (2021 19.00%). The differences are

explained below:

Profit before taxation

Prof;t before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19. 00% (2021 19.00%)

Effects of:

- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Income not subject to tax

Adjustments in respect of prlor years

- Foreign tax

Double tax relief

Remeasurement of deferred tax due to change in UK tax
rate. ‘ '
Tax charge

Arcadis Consultigg (UK) Limited - registered number: 02212959

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
42,377 42,261
8,052 8,030
58 39
(157) (85)
692 411
187 230
(184) (224)
216 (103)
8,864 ' 8,298
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

7. Income tax expense (continued)
The tax rate fd_r the current year is the same as the prior year.

In the Spring Budget 2021, the UK Government anriqun_cegj that from-1 April 2023 the:
corporation tax rate would increase to 25% (rather than remaih_ing at 19%, as previously’
enacted). This new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. Deferred taxes at the ‘

balance sheet Q§te have been measured using these.enacted tax rates and reflected inf these

financial statements.

Deferred tax ha;ibe_’_en calculated using the tax rates at which underlying temporary
differences are expected to unwind.

8. Intangible assets

2022 Software
£000

Cost

At beginning of year 2,516

Additions 8

Dispbsals -

At end of year 2,524

Accumulated amortisation

At beginning of year 2,231
Charged for the year 238
Released on diélposal -
At end of year ‘ 2,469

Net book value

At 1 January 2022 285
Movement in the year (230)

At 31 December 2022 ' 55

Arcadis Consulting (t_JK;) Limited - registered number: 02212959
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. Propérty, plant and equipment

cq&_pputer o Fixtures. :

2022 ’ hardware Equipment’ & fittings Total

£'000 £7000 £'000, £'000
Cost ' .
At beginning of year 6,215 762 11,943 18,920
Additions . 2,257 406 2,155 4,818
Disposals . (238) (80) (1,017) (1,335)
At end of year 8,234 1,088 13,081 22,403
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year . - 3,684 469 4,709 8,862
Charge forthe year - 1,319 192 1,163 2,674
Released on dispo;al (238) (80), (1,017) (1,335)
Atend of year . 4,765 581 4,855 10,201
Net book value
At 1 January 2022 2,531 293 7,234 10,058
Movement in the year 938 214 992 2,144
At 31 December 2022 3,469 507 8,226 12,202

10. Leases
The Company has lease contracts for vanous offices, vehicles and office IT equipment
used in the operatlons The amounts recognlsed in the fmanual statements in relatlon

to the leases are as follows:

{i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial position
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases

Right-of-use assets

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

£'000 © £000

Buildings 7,403 3,682
IT equipment : - 137
Vehicles 88 4

7,491 3,823
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
10.

Leases (cqntinged)

Lease Liabilities

1,840 -

Current 1,356 4
Non-current 6,133 1,917
S 7,489 3,757
Proy_isions
Current. 381 511
Non-current 477 252
"' 858 763

Additions and remeasurements to the right-of-use assets durlng the 2022 fmancaal year

were a net mcrease of £6,082k (2021 net decrease of £3 118k)

(i) Amounts recognisedin the ingdme statement

The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases

2022 2021
£/000 £2000
Depreciation charge of right-of-
use assets C
Buildings 2,267 2,994
IT equipment 137 1137
Vehicles 10 28
2,414 3,159
Interest income/(expense)
(included in fihanqe costs) (10-9) 125
Expense relating tg short-term :
leases (included in other 235 80.
operating expenses) -
Expense relatlng to leases of low-
value assets that are not shown -
above as short-term leases 1

{included in administrative
expenses)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. Leases (continued)

Future minimum lease payments as at 31 December are as follows:

2022 2021"

£'000 £/000 -
Not later than one year 1,398 1,852
Later Fhan one year and not later 4,160 2,001 '
than five years ) ; S
Later than five years 2,710 -
Total gross payments - 8,268 3,853
Impact of finance expenses ' (779) (96)
Carrying amount of liability ' 7,489 3,757

The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 w"as £1,987k (2021: £3,409k).

11. Investments

Cost of sharesin Provision for _
subsidiary- impairment Net book value
£000 £'000 - £000
At 1 January 2021 3,774 (3,774) . -
Additions ' - - -
Disposals ‘ - - -
Impairment charge - _ - -
At 31 December 2021 ' ‘ 3,774 ’ (3,774) -
Cost of shares - Provision for

in subsidiary impairment  Net book value
' £000 £000 o £000

At 1 January 2022 3,774 (3,774) -
Additions = - - -
Disposals . - - -
Impairment charge, - - -
At 31 December. 2022 3,774 (3,774) ’ -

The net bbpk value of investments at 31 December 2022 comprises investments in the subsidiaries
listed below.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Investments{cdyjfti}nued)’

Subsidiaries .
Name -Holding | Incorporated | Principal Equity Registered
type in : activity Owned address
2022 and
. 2021
Hyder Consulting | Direct UK ' Holding 100% 80 Fenchurch
Overseas Limited. company Street
London
EC3M 4BY
SRC Direct |UK Dissolvedon | 100% 80 Fenchurch
Management 22 June 2022 Street
Limited London
EC3M 4BY
Power Systems | Direct UK Dissolved on 100% 80 Fenchurch
Project & 22 June 2022° Street
Consultancy, London
Services Limited EC3M 4BY
Cresswell Direct UK In liquidation | 100% 80 Fenchurch
Associates i Street.
(Environmental | London
Consultants) EC3M 4BY
Limited
Acer ' Direct UK Dormant 100% 80 Fenchurch
Partnerships Street
Limited * London
EC3M 4BY
Arcadis | Direct Romania Engineering | 100% Tintasului
Consulting (UK) A design and Nr 21 Etaj 1
Filiala Bucuresti consultancy Sectorul 1
SRL Bucuresti .
012165
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Investments (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Name Holding | Incorporated Principal Equity Registered
type in activity Owned | address
' 2022
and
2021
Arcadis Nuclear | Indirect | UK In liquidation | 100% 80 Fenchurch
Safety and Risk Street
Consultancy. London .
Limited EC3M 4BY
Associated undertakings
JacksonHyder - | Direct UK Engineering | 50% 30 White House
Limited ' design and- Road '
consultancy Ipswich
IP1 5LT
Hyder WSP JV Direct Unincaorporated | Engineering S_O% Arcadis Cymru .
' design and House ‘
consultancy St Mellons
o Business Park
Fortran Road
Cardiff
Cf3 OEY:
Hyder-Mott Direct Unincorporated | Engineering | 50% Arcadis Cymru
MacDonald JV - design and House
consultancy St Mellons
Business Park
Fortran Road
Cardiff
CF3 OEY
Hyder Halcrow | Direct Unincorporated | Engineering | 50% Medawar Road
1Y o design and - Surrey Research
consultancy Park
Guildford
Surrey
GU2 7AR
CH2M Hyder JV | Direct Unincorporated | Engineering | 40% 227 London Road
' design and Worcester
consultancy WRS5 2JG
LTC-Cascade JV | Direct Unincorporated | Engineering | 40% Elms House
design and 43 Brook Green
consultancy London W6 7EF
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Notes to the fing_h,cial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Investments (’c@ﬁtinued)

Associated undgftakings {continued)

Name Holding | Incorporated Principal Equity Registered
type in activity Owned | address:
' 2022
and-
_ 2021 ‘
Arcadis SETEC | Direct Unincorporated | Engineering | 75% Arcadis Cymru
COwIJV - design and- House -
consultancy - St Mellons
' ' Business Park
Fortran Road
Cardiff
CF3 OEY
* On 27 April 2022, the Companygispps}e_d of Acer Partnerships-Limited.
12. Deferred tax
‘ Post- Accelerated .
employment capital
benefits allowances Total
£000 £;'0Q0 £'000
At 1 January 2021 1,879 529, 2,408
Ad_justme_nts in respect of i (75) (75)
prior years -
(Charged)/credited to profit
and loss account:
Current year (note 7) (5;8) (127) (655)
Impact of change in UK tax - 103 103
rate (note 7). '
1,351 430 1,781
Charged to other ‘
comprehensive expense:
Currentyear (4,294) - (4,294)
Impact of change in UK tax (930) i (930)
rate
At 31 December 2021 (3,873) 430 (3,443)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

12. Deferred tax (continued)

‘ Accelerated
Post-employment capital
benefits. allowances Total
£'000 £’000 £'000
At 1 January 2022 (3,873) 430 (3,443)
Ad.justment's in respect of ) (384) (384)
prior years S
(Charged)/credited to profit
and loss account:
Current year (note 7) (665) {19) (684)
Impact of change in UK tax ’
rate (note 7) (210) (6) (216)
(4,748) S 21 (4,727)
Credited to other ' '
comprehensive income:
Current year : 2,937 - 2,937
Impact of change in UK tax 928 i 928
rate .
At 31 December 2022 (883) 21 (862)
13. Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounts fallmg due within one year
Trade recenvables 24,966 23,393
Contract assets. , 22,958 13,300
Loans to ultlmate parent company 96,006 78,347
Amounts due from group undertaklngs 3,001 -
Receivables from other related parties (note 21) - 195
Prepayments 78 119
Corporation tax receivable 2,843 1,566
Other debtors 335 -
150,187 116,920

Trade receivables are stated after provisions for impairment of £0.2m (2021: £0.3m).

Loans to uitimate parent company mclude a loan facility w1th a maximum principal amount of
£150m, with mterest charged at the rate of 3Y IRS rate 0.23 plus margin of 1.05% per annum
and are repayable on demand. Other loans and receuvables owed by related parties are
unsecured, mterest free, have no fuxed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited — registered number: 02212959

51



DocuSign Envelope ID: A4204873-B167-4428-BF 3A-ECA1 A46FA3_CF

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year.ended 31 December 2022

14. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year .
2022 2021

| £'000 £/000

Amounts falling due within one year: . .
Amounts owe_‘d't,o grbup undertakings: 18,263 ~';1;4_,575
Contract liabilities ‘ 23,297 24,368
Accruals : 49 255
© 41609 39,198

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interés_t free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand.

15.  Provisions for liabilities

Legal and Dilapidations
similar Vacant —~other  Restoration

costs  properties properties assets Total

£'000 £000° . £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January
2021 793 210 2,786 . 781 4,570
Provided during 122 - 89 111 322
the year : :
Unused
amounts (1) - {541) - (542)
reversed '
Unwinding of. . i ) 50 80
discount =
Utilised during .
the year A (179) (176) |(768) (209) (1,332)
Reclassified - - : - - -
At 31 December s 66 .
2021 e 735 34 1,566 763 3,098
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. Provisions for.liabilities (continued)

Legal and .- Dilapidations

similar Vacant - other Restoration :
costs _properties properties - assets Total
£'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January '
2022 735 | 34 1,566 763 3,098
Provided during” 600 i 192 ' 444 1,236
the year e i .
Unused
amounts - - (189) : (196) (376)
reversed R
U'nwmdmg of . . i ) 6 6
discount. -
Utilised during )
the year (415) (28) (205) (208) (856)
Reclassified - - (49} 49 -
At 31 December ' ‘ o
2022 920 6 1,324 858 3,108

Analysis of total provisions:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Due within one year 1,674 1,471
Due after one year - 1,434 1,627
o 3,108 3,098

Dilapidations — other properties

The provision relates to repairs and r,_eiAns_t'atement costs in respect of the Company'’s
occupied offices. Of the provision £1.0m (2021: £1.3m) is classified as due within one year
since the lease end date or break clause date is within the next financial year. .

Legal and similar costs

During the year one of the provisions for legal costs was utilised. Several of the provisions
were wholly or partially reversed.

Arcadis Consulting (UK) Limited - registered number: 02212959 53



DocuSign Envelope ID: A4204873-B_16,7-4‘,428'.-BF3A-ECA1A46FA3CF

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 .

15.

16.

Provisions for liabilities (continued)
Restoration assets

During the year several restoration assets were created for new leases entered into durmg
the year. No amounts were reclassnfled (2021: £nil). One provrsnon was utilised for a property
which was surrendered during the year.

Vacant Propertiés '

This provision relates to the future costs whrch the Company. |s contractually obllgated to pay
for properties which have been prevuously vacated.

Post-employment benefits
The assets of the Acer Group Pension Scheme ‘(the ‘AGPS’), a defined benefit scheme, are
held separately from the assets of the Company and are administered by trustees,

The AGPS was closed to future benefit accrual on 30 April 2011. The proposed mortality
assumptions after retirement have been updated to reflect the neutral basis considered as
part of the most recent actuarial valuation of the Scheme, as at 1 April 2020.

The contributions made to the scheme in the year were £3.1m (vear ended 31 December
2021: £2.8m), with £0.1m (year ended 31 December 2021: £0 1m) paid to annuitants.

The risks of the AGPS are as foIIows
(a) Asset volat/l/ty

The AGPS liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond
yields; if scheme assets underperform thls yield, this will create a deficit.

The scheme holds a mixture of asset classes including equities, fixed and index-linked gilts,
property and hedge funds. This mixture is to provide both the required scheme yield but also
to protect the AGPS from changes in bond yields and inflation.

(b) Changes in bond yields

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase scheme liabilities, although this will be
partially offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s hedgmg assets.

(c) Life expectancy

The majority of the AGPS’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the scheme’s liabilities.

. (d) Inflation _risk

The pension obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher
liabilities, although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to
protect the scheme against extreme inflation. Again, the increase in obligation will be
partially offset by an increase in the value of the AGPS’s hedging assets. '
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16.

Post-employment benefits (continued) :

A comprehensive actuarial valuation of the AGPS, using the pro;ected unit basis, was carrled
out at 1 April 2020 and updated to.31 December 2022 by a qualified independent actuary.
Adjustments to the valuation at that date have been made based on the following
assumptions: '

2022 2021
Duration used to derive the assumptions 15 years 18 years
Discount rate 4.90% 2.00%
Retail price inflation (RPI) 3.40% 3.60%
Consumer price inflation (CP1) 2.40% 2.60%
Rate of increase to pensions in payment:
- RPI up to a maximum 5% 3.25% 3.40%
- RPI up to a maximum 3% 2.60% 2.70%
- RPI up to a maximum 2.5% 2.30% 2.35%
- CPlup to a maximum 3% 2.05% 2.15%
- RPI min 2.5% max 5% 3.45% 3.60%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with
published statistics and experience in the UK. These assumptions translate into an average
life expectancy. in years fora pensroner retmng at age 65:

2022 2021
Years Years
Longewty at age 65 for current pensioners ‘
- Males 225 22.4
- Females 24.8 24.7
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners
- Males currently aged 45 ' 23.8 23.8

- Females currently aged 45 26.2 26.1

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal
assumption is:. ‘

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase / decrease by 0.5% Decrease / increase by £9m -

Rate of inflation Increase / decrease by 0.5% Increase / decrease by £6m

Life expectancy Increase / decrease by 1 year  Increase / decrease by £6m

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensmwty of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised
within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous year. The following disclosures also include the
movements on the unfunded Hyder annuitants arrangement.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 "

16. Post-empleyment benefits (conti‘nu_ed,')i '
The assets and liabilities in the scheme at 31 December are:

2022 2021

£'000 E'OQO
Equities 18,968 57,022
Bonds 61,627 149,687
Hedge funds - 17,966 {359)
Other 50,164 28,725
Total market value of assets 148,725 235,075
Present value of scheme liabilities (144,860) . (2;9,103)
Surplus in the scheme 3,865 15,972
Pre'-sent-value of unfunded liabilities (336). A(,477)
Pension surplus ‘ . 3529 15,495

History of experience gains and losses:

31Dec2022 31 Dec 2021

Fair value of scheme assets (£'000) 148,725 235,075
Present value of scheme obligations (£ 000) (145,196) (219,580)
Surplus in the scheme (£'000) 3,529 15,495

Experience ad_jus_tments on scheme assets:
Amount (Em) 87.4 (13.9)
Percentage of scheme assets 59% 6%

Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities:
Amount (Em) A 10.4 (0.4)
Percentage of scheme liabilities 7.16% 0.18%

Cumulative amount recognised i in equlty
Amount (Em) 26.0 (71.8)

The estimated amount of contributions expected to be paid into the AGPS durmg the year
ended 31 December 2023 is £3.0m (2021 £3.0m). :
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

16. Post-employment benefits {continued)
Note: At the date of the latest triennial valuation (1 April 2020) the AGPS held assets to the
value of £189 7m (1 Apl’l| 2017 £194.6m). Thns represented a funding level of 82%. of the

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit pensnon obhgatlons are analysed as

follows: . '
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
At 1 January 219,580 231,529
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 4,324 3,197
Remeasurements (71,892) (8,743)
Benefits paid from plan {6,816) . (6,403)
At 31 December ' 145,196 219,580
Chapges in the fair value of plan assets are analysed as follows:
| o 2022 2021
£000 £000
At 1 January 235,075 221,642
Expected return on scheme assets 4,665 3,078
Remeasurements (87,352) 13,858
Contributions from employer 3,053 2,806
Benefits paid from plan (6,716) (6,309)
At 31 December 148,725 235,075
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement are analysed as follows:
‘ 2022 2021
£000 £'000
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 4,324 3,197
Expected return on pension scheme assets (4,665) (3,078)
Net interest expense (note 6) . (341) 119

Total recqgnised in the Income Statement (341) 119

The proportions of quoted and unquoted assets for the AGPS are as follows:

2022 2021
Proportion on quoted assets 89.9% 68.1%
Proportion on uriqqoted assets 10.1% 31.9%
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Notes to the financial statem_ents (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

17. Contract assets and liabilities

When turnover exceeds the progress billings, the surplus is shown as a contract asset. When
progress bullmg__s exceed the turnover, the balance is shown as a contract liability. Recogmsed loss
provisions are'separately presented as P'rowsnon for onerous contracts. Contract assets, Contract
liabilities and the related Provision for onerous contracts are together generally also referred to as
work in progress

Contract assets are subject to the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The Company applies a
simplified approach that uses a hfetlme expected loss aIIowance to recognise losses for possible
impairment, in line with the accounting for Expected Credit Loss on Trade recelvables The Expected
Credit Loss is rgcpgnlzed in Other operating expenses.

For further details on the recognmon of contract assets and contract liabilities see the revenue
accounting pohcy in note 3. :

The balances of contract assets and contract liabilities, are as follows:

2021 2021 2021
Contract assets C.°”.tfa_°‘ Net position
liabilities :
£7000 £'000 £'000
Cumulative revenue 185,587 414,992 600,579
Loss provisions - (4,116) (4,116)
Expected credit loss allowance - - -
Billings to date (172,287) (435,244) (607,531).
13,300 (24,368) 11,068
2022 2022 2022
Contract assets C‘on.tra.ct Net position
liabilities 4 :
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cumulative revenue 307,056 516,598 823,654
Loss provisions (756) (3,075) (3,831)
Expected credit loss allowance - - -
Billings to date (283,342) (536,820) (820,162)
' 22,958 (23,297) (339)
18. Called up share capital
Ordinary shares of 5p each Number: '000 £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 1 January 2021 and 2022 116,591 5,830
Issued during the year - .
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 116,591 5,830

All shares rank pari passu in all respects.
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Notes to the financial statements (contmued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

19. Contmgentluablhtles

The Company has received notice of professnonal indemnity claims. The Company has been
advised by Counsel that it is not probable that these claims will succeed accordingly, no,
provision for any liability has been made in these financial statements. Should all the claims
be successful, it'has been estimated that the liability. would be £0.4m (2021: £0.90m),

20. Capital and other commitments

Committed lease payments for short-term and low-value leases are as follows:

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Short-term Ieasé; N ' 47 22
Low-value leases 92 1
139 23

21. Guarantees

The Company agreed to guarantee the lease payments on the London Manning House
property following the assignment to thlrd parties of the leases for all three floors The

guarantee explred in June 2022.

22. Related party transactions

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business,
with other related parties. Details ofdnrectors remuneration are disclosed in note 5. The
Company has taken advantage of the: exemption under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to

disclose tra nsactlons with fellow wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The Company had the following transactions with Joint Arrangements:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Revenue:
Arcadis SETEC COWIJV 150,084 80,148
CH2M Hyder JV 5,621 4,595
Hyder Halcrow JV 58 89
Hyder WSP JV - 232
JacksoriHyder Limited 137 144
Arcadis Mace )V 257 -
Futran JV 4 1,421 -
LTC-Cascade JV 12,999 13,728
' 170,577 98,936
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

22. Related party transactions (continued)
At 31 December the Company held the followmg balances with Joint Arra ngements;

2022 2021
£'000 £'000

Receivables:
CH2M Hyder JV. . - 3
JacksonHyder Limited - 4
Hyder WSP JV - 188
- 195

23. Directors’ and officers’ loans and transactions
Other than drsclosed in the Directors’ Report, no loans or credit-transactions with any
directors, officers or connected persons subsnsted during the ﬂnancral year or were
outstandmg at the end of the fmancnal year.

24. Post balance sheet events
On 28 February 2023 the Company proposed to pay a drwdend of £66,007,248.

25.  Controlling parties -

The Company s immediate parent undertaking is Arcadis Consulting Europe Limited. It is part

of the UK group headed by Arcadis UK (Holdings) Limited.

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Arcadls N.V., a company.
mcorporated in the Netherlands.

The smallest and Iargest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that

headed by Arcadis N.V. Registered address

Arcadis N.V.

Gustav Mahlerplein 97
1082 MS Amsterdam,
The Netherlands

The consolidated financial statements of Arcadis N.V. are available at: www.arcadis.com.
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